
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

6:30 P.M. – EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 

 
REGULAR MEETING August 28, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
2. INVOCATION – Reverend Terry Highland, St. Peters Episcopal Church 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
    
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on August 14, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
   
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Committee meeting held June 20, 2017. 

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Finance Committee 
meeting held April 11, 2017. 

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Parking and Safety 
Committee held on February 20, 2017.  

D. Resolution No. 17-51, a resolution authorizing the installation of a 
No Parking Anytime Zone on the east side of Ashburn Drive from 
Ferguson Avenue to 115 feet south of Ferguson Avenue.   

E. Resolution No. 17-52, a resolution replacing Resolution No. 17-43 
and authorizing the City Manager to prepare and submit an 
application to participate in the Ohio Public Works Commission 
(OPWC) Local transportation Improvement (LTIP) Grant Program 
(Round 32), and to execute contracts as required for pavement 
resurfacing and rehabilitation of Winter Street and Heffner Street 
and repairs to the Winter Street Bridge.  

F. Resolution No. 17-53, a resolution replacing Resolution No. 17-44 



2 
 

and authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Cooperation 
Agreement with Delaware County for an application to the Ohio 
Public Works Commission (OPWC) for the pavement resurfacing 
and rehabilitation of Winter Street and Heffner Street and repairs 
to the Winter Street Bridge (Round 32 Application).   

 
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8 PRESENTATION 

A. Preservation Parks of Delaware County – Tom Curtin, Executive 
Director 

 
9. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-54, a resolution adopting the 

2018-2022 Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  
 
10. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-59, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2017 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding for the 
Taxiway Design and Reconstruction Grant, and declaring an emergency.  
  

11. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-60, an ordinance supplementing 
the 2017 Appropriations Ordinance to provide additional funding for an 
agreement with Medrock, LLC, and declaring an emergency.  

 
12.  PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING DRAFT ORDINANCE 

AMENDING NEGLECT OF COMPANION ANIMALS (TETHERING). 
 
13. FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
14. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
15. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 





























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 08/28/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-51 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A NO PARKING 
ANYTIME ZONE ON THE EAST SIDE OF ASHBURN DRIVE FROM FERGUSON 
AVENUE TO 115 FEET SOUTH OF FERGUSON AVENUE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Residents living in the Kensington Place Subdivision requested that a No 
Parking Anytime Zone be installed on the eastside of Ashburn Drive south of 
Ferguson Ave due to sight distance issues of the crosswalk crossing Ashburn 
Drive at Ferguson Avenue.  This is a main crossing point for residents within 
the subdivision to the existing neighborhood park. The Parking and Safety 
Committee and Staff heard the concerns from the Kensington Place HOA 
President whom voiced the concerns of other residents in the neighborhood.  
Staff made a final recommendation that a No Parking Anytime Zone be 
installed on the east side of Ashburn Drive from Ferguson Avenue to 115 feet 
south of Ferguson Avenue. Additional No Parking signage will also be installed 
north of the intersection on both sides of Ashburn Drive per codified ordinance 
351.03 to clearly delineate the no parking zone at the intersection. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The placement of regulatory signage requires City Council authorization for 
permanent enforcement. 
 
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the August 21, 2017 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the signage is estimated at $200.00 to come out 
of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-51 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION 
OF A NO PARKING ANYTIME ZONE ON THE EAST 
SIDE OF ASHBURN DRIVE FROM FERGUSON 
AVENUE TO 115 FEET SOUTH OF FERGUSON 
AVENUE. 
 

WHEREAS, the No Parking Anytime Zone has been requested so as to 
provide for the safe maneuverability of pedestrians crossing Ashburn Drive at 
Ferguson Avenue; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed  the 
installation of the a No Parking Anytime Zone on the east side of Ashburn Drive 
from Ferguson Avenue to 115 feet south of Ferguson Avenue by a 3-0 vote at 
the August 21, 2017 meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.  The No Parking Anytime Zone will be installed on the east 
side of Ashburn Drive from Ferguson Avenue to 115 feet south of Ferguson 
Avenue. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM E DATE: 08/28/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-52 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION REPLACING RESOLUTION NO. 17-43 AND AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE OHIO PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION (OPWC) LOCAL 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS (LTIP) GRANT PROGRAM (ROUND 32), 
AND TO EXECUTE CONTRACTS AS REQUIRED FOR PAVEMENT 
RESURFACING AND REHABILITATION OF WINTER STREET AND HEFFNER 
STREET AND REPAIRS TO THE WINTER STREET BRIDGE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This resolution, authorizing the submittal of an OPWC application, is 
identical to the one Council passed on July 24, 2017, except Heffner 
Street has replaced Union Street as one of the streets to be resurfaced.  
This was done to be consistent with the 2017-2021 CIP, which identifies 
Heffner Street as a 2018 project.  
 
The streets to be resurfaced and rehabilitated as part of this project are Heffner 
Street and Winter Street; additionally repairs will be made to the Winter Street 
Bridge over the Olentangy River. 
 
Heffner Street is an east/west local street with a pavement rating of ‘F’ If 
Heffner Street is not resurfaced it is expected that it will deteriorate to a point 
where a simple resurfacing treatment will be insufficient to extend the life of 
the road and a major reconstruction will be needed. It has been over 20 years 



since Heffner was last resurfaced. The treatment being proposed is an1.5 inch 
mill, a Fiber Stress Absorbing Membrane Interlayer (SAMI) and an1.5 inch 
asphalt overlay. 
 
East Winter Street is an east/west collector street with a pavement rating of ‘C’. 
The asphalt surface course has reached the end of its useful life indicating that 
a resurfacing is warranted. It was last resurfaced in 2001. E. Winter Street will 
be resurfaced from Franklin Street to Central Avenue. E. Winter Street has a 
total ADT load of 2,588 vehicles with 2,550 cars and bikes and 38 trucks. The 
treatment being proposed is a 1.5 inch mill, a Fiber Stress Absorbing 
Membrane Interlayer (SAMI) and a 1.5 inch asphalt overlay. 
 
Heffner Street and Winter Street also have high volume of pedestrian traffic 
that must traverse uneven walks and potholes located in crosswalks.  The 
selected treatment will provide a smooth and safe wearing surface for vehicles, 
pedestrians and cyclists.  This treatment will also help to delay further base 
asphalt deterioration.   
 
The Winter Street Bridge (SFN: 2160072) is a concrete deck and steel beam 
bridge with stacked stone abutments that was constructed in 1915. As of 2016 
it has Bridge Rating of 6 (Satisfactory). The repairs to the bridge are replacing 
missing stones in the west abutment with concrete, remove and replaced 
deteriorated portions of the concrete approach slabs, and replacing sections of 
deteriorated sidewalk.  
 
Lastly, the signalized intersection at Heffner Street & Sandusky Street and the 
signalized intersection at Winter Street & Sandusky Street will be refurbished 
as part of this project in order to enhance safety and provide better visibility of 
the vehicular heads. The refurbishment at Winter Street & Sandusky Street will 
include the replacement of signal heads, wiring, and other aging signal 
components and hardware. Video detection will be added to the signal at 
Heffner Street & Sandusky Street. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Passage of this Resolution authorizes the City Manager to apply for grant 
funding in the amount of $427,000 from OPWC.  If grant funding is awarded, 
this Resolution also allows the City Manager to sign a formal OPWC Project 
Agreement (in July of 2018).  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The Public Works Committee was cancelled for July and will not meet again 
until October. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



The total project cost is currently estimated at $837,942. Submitting a 
complete application requires budgeting sufficient funding to cover the City’s 
contribution to the project, currently estimated at $360,942.    
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Winter Street and Heffner Street Resurfacing Exhibit 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-52 
 
 A RESOLUTION REPLACING RESOLUTION NO. 17-43 

AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PREPARE AND SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE OHIO PUBLIC WORKS 
COMMISSION (OPWC) LOCAL TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENTS (LTIP) GRANT PROGRAM (ROUND 
32), AND TO EXECUTE CONTRACTS AS REQUIRED 
FOR PAVEMENT RESURFACING AND 
REHABILITATION OF WINTER STREET AND 
HEFFNER STREET AND REPAIRS TO THE WINTER 
STREET BRIDGE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Local Transportation Improvements Program provides 

financial assistance to political subdivisions for capital improvements to public 
infrastructure; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware seeks to improve the pavement 

condition by performing pavement resurfacing and rehabilitation operations to 
Winter Street and Heffner Street; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware seeks to improve the bridge condition by 

performing abutment and approach repairs and rehabilitation operations to 
Winter Street Bridge; and 

 
WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements herein above described is 

considered to be a priority need for the community and is a qualified project 
under the OPWC program; and 

 
 WHEREAS, this resolution updates and replaces Resolution No. 17-43 to 
reflect the amended street included in the agreement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to submit an 
application to the Ohio Public Works Commission for LTIP Program Grant 
Funds, (Round 32) for the construction of pavement resurfacing and 
rehabilitation improvements to Winter Street, Heffner Street, and Winter Street 
Bridge. 
 

SECTION 2. The City Manager is further authorized to enter into any 
agreement as may be necessary and appropriate to obtaining this financial 
assistance and contracting the work to be performed.  
 



SECTION 3.   That Resolution No. 17-43 is hereby repealed in its entirety. 
 
SECTION 4. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 









  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM F DATE: 08/28/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-53 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION REPLACING RESOLUTION NO. 17-44 AND AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH 
DELAWARE COUNTY FOR AN APPLICATION TO THE OHIO PUBLIC WORKS 
COMMISSION (OPWC) FOR THE PAVEMENT RESURFACING AND 
REHABILITATION OF WINTER STREET AND HEFFNER STREET AND REPAIRS 
TO THE WINTER STREET BRIDGE (ROUND 32 APPLICATION). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This resolution, authorizing the submittal of an OPWC application, is 
identical to the one Council passed on July 24, 2017, except Heffner 
Street has replaced Union Street as one of the streets to be resurfaced.  
This was done to be consistent with the 2017-2021 CIP, which identifies 
Heffner Street as a 2018 project.  
 
The streets to be resurfaced and rehabilitated as part of this project are Heffner 
Street and Winter Street; additionally repairs will be made to the Winter Street 
Bridge over the Olentangy River. 
 
Heffner Street is an east/west local street with a pavement rating of ‘F’ If 
Heffner Street is not resurfaced it is expected that it will deteriorate to a point 
where a simple resurfacing treatment will be insufficient to extend the life of 
the road and a major reconstruction will be needed. It has been over 20 years 
since Heffner was last resurfaced. The treatment being proposed is a 1.5 inch 



mill, a Fiber Stress Absorbing Membrane Interlayer (SAMI) and a 1.5 inch 
asphalt overlay. 
 
East Winter Street is an east/west collector street with a pavement rating of ‘C’. 
The asphalt surface course has reached the end of its useful life indicating that 
a resurfacing is warranted. It was last resurfaced in 2001. E. Winter Street will 
be resurfaced from Franklin Street to Central Avenue. E. Winter Street has a 
total ADT load of 2,588 vehicles with 2,550 cars and bikes and 38 trucks. The 
treatment being proposed is a 1.5 inch mill, a Fiber Stress Absorbing 
Membrane Interlayer (SAMI) and a 1.5 inch asphalt overlay. 
 
Heffner Street and Winter Street also have high volume of pedestrian traffic 
that must traverse uneven walks and potholes located in crosswalks.  The 
selected treatment will provide a smooth and safe wearing surface for vehicles, 
pedestrians and cyclists.  This treatment will also help to delay further base 
asphalt deterioration.   
 
The Winter Street Bridge (SFN: 2160072) is a concrete deck and steel beam 
bridge with stacked stone abutments that was constructed in 1915. As of 2016 
it has Bridge Rating of 6 (Satisfactory). The repairs to the bridge are replacing 
missing stones in the west abutment with concrete, remove and replaced 
deteriorated portions of the concrete approach slabs, and replacing sections of 
deteriorated sidewalk.  
 
Lastly, the signalized intersection at Heffner Street & Sandusky Street and the 
signalized intersection at Winter Street & Sandusky Street will be refurbished 
as part of this project in order to enhance safety and provide better visibility of 
the vehicular heads. The refurbishment at Winter Street & Sandusky Street will 
include the replacement of signal heads, wiring, and other aging signal 
components and hardware. Video detection will be added to the signal at 
Heffner Street & Sandusky Street. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Passage of this Resolution authorizes the City Manager to sign an agreement 
with Delaware County accepting their contribution currently estimated at 6.0% 
(with a cap of $50,000) towards this project.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The Public Works Committee was cancelled for July and will not meet again 
until October. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The total project cost is currently estimated at $837,942. Submitting a 
complete application requires budgeting sufficient funding to cover the City’s 
contribution to the project, currently estimated at $360,942.   
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-53 
 

A RESOLUTION REPLACING RESOLUTION NO. 17-44 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER 
INTO A COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH DELAWARE 
COUNTY FOR AN APPLICATION TO THE OHIO PUBLIC 
WORKS COMMISSION (OPWC) FOR THE PAVEMENT 
RESURFACING AND REHABILITATION OF WINTER 
STREET AND HEFFNER STREET AND REPAIRS TO THE 
WINTER STREET BRIDGE (ROUND 32 APPLICATION). 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Delaware provides financial assistance to political 
subdivisions applying for OPWC Grant funds for Capital Improvements to public 
infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Delaware seeks to improve highway safety for both 
vehicle and pedestrian traffic by replacing damaged, deteriorated and rutted 
pavement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvement herein above described is 
considered to be a priority need for the community and is a qualified project under 
the County Cooperation Agreement Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this resolution updates and replaces Resolution No. 17-44 to 
reflect the amended street included in the agreement.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

 
 SECTION 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter in to a 
Cooperative Agreement with Delaware County for a grant application not to exceed 
$50,000.00 for the City of Delaware for the pavement resurfacing and 
rehabilitation of Winter Street and Heffner Street and bridge repairs to the Winter 
Street Bridge. 

 
 SECTION 2.  That the City of Delaware agrees to be the designated lead 
agency, signing all required applications, agreements and correspondence.  
 
 SECTION 3.   That Resolution No. 17-44 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

  
 SECTION 4.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 
 



PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  9    DATE: 08/28/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-54 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2018-2022 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A work session to discuss the CIP has been scheduled for Monday, October 2. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Charter, the CIP is to be submitted to City 
Council by August 15 and adopted no later than October 15.  Adoption is 
scheduled for Council’s October 9 meeting. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
CIP 



RESOLUTION 17-54 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2018-2022 FIVE-
YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 

 
 WHEREAS, a revised Five-Year Capital Improvements Program was 
prepared and submitted to City Council in accordance with Article XVII, 
Section 79 of the City Charter, and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council has considered the proposed plan and has 
determined that it shall be the future public improvement plan for the City of 
Delaware, and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article XVII, Section 80 of the City Charter requires that City 
Council adopt, by resolution, the Five-Year Capital Improvements Program on 
or before October 15, and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council will review the 2018-2022 CIP at Work Sessions 
before October 10. 
 
 WHEREAS, Council discussed possible amendments to the plan which 
may be considered as part of the adopted 2018 budget.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the 2018-2022 Five-Year Capital Improvements 
Program for the General Fund, Airport, Fire, Police, Public Works, Parks, 
Equipment Replacement, Technology, Building Maintenance, Water, Sewer, 
Storm Sewer, Refuse, Parks Impact, Police Impact, and Fire Impact attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted as the official plan for future public 
improvements. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage.   
 
PASSED:     _____________________, 2017  YEAS ____     NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: __________________________     ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 08/28/2017  
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-59    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E. Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE TAXIWAY DESIGN AND 
RECONSTRUCTION GRANT AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.   
 
BACKGROUND:  
Resurfacing of Taxiway A (west) represents the final phase of the airport 
runway extension project.  The 800 LF extension of runway 10 was completed 
in 2016 along with reconstruction of the east half of Taxiway A.  The project 
was designed in 2016 with an estimated construction cost of $440,686.  The 
project was bid in spring of 2017 with construction costs coming in at 
$566,249 or $125,563 over the estimated cost.  An FAA application for funding 
was submitted in July and subsequently approved for the higher construction 
cost.  The project is scheduled to commence construction in September and 
should be completed by end of October with minimal disruption to daily airport 
operations. 95% of the total project cost will be covered through FAA and 
ODOT funding sources.  An additional $6,278 of local funding is required over 
the $22,035 appropriated for the project in the 2017 budget. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The 2017 appropriations ordinance included local costs and anticipated federal 
and state reimbursements based on the lower project estimate.  A 
supplemental appropriation is necessary to reflect the higher grant funding 
available and minor increase in local funding.   



 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
Requires additional $6,278 in local funding to be appropriated toward this 
project.   
 
POLICY CHANGES:  
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Approval First Reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-59 
 
 AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 

APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE TAXIWAY DESIGN 
AND RECONSTRUCTION GRANT AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City applied for and received Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) funding for the Taxiway A design and construction project 
with an estimated total cost of $440,687; and 
 

WHEREAS, the actual bid amount for the project came in $125,562 
above the engineers original estimate; and 

 
WHEREAS, ninety-five percent of the increased project cost will be 

covered by grant funds and the City’s grant match amount (5%) will go up by 
$6,278; and 

 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation will be necessary to award the 

improvement contract. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Capital Improvement Fund $6,278 increasing the following 
account: 
 

Transfer to FAA Airport Grant Fund (410-4107-5732)  $   6,278 
 
SECTION 2. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the FAA Airport Grant Fund $279,507 increasing the following 
account: 
 

Taxiway A Design/Construction (430-4318-5702)  $279,507 
 
SECTION 3. That the existing appropriation in the FAA Airport AIP Grant 

Fund is reduced by $153,945 decreasing the following account: 
 

Taxiway A Design/Construction (431-4315-5535)         ($153,945) 
 
SECTION 4. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 



deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 5.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City, and to secure contract bid pricing 
beyond the agreed upon bid guarantee time period, and as such will be in full 
force and effect immediately upon its passage. 

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 

 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE:     YEAS____ NAYS____ 

       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 08/28/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-60    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR AN AGREEMENT WITH MEDROCK, 
LLC, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
This supplemental provides funding for an agreement to resolve issues arising 
as a result of the construction of the Delaware Community Center YMCA and 
the connected Veteran’s Park.  As part of the construction of the Delaware 
Community Center, the City purchased land from Medrock and agreed to 
reimburse Medrock for dirt it purchases that it would otherwise have been able 
to obtain from the purchased land.  This remains an open obligation.  Part of 
the project involved building a retention pond to collect storm water.  The 
interpretation of agreement, and associated addendums and agreements, has 
caused some issues to arise between the parties.  This agreement resolves all of 
the open points of controversy between Medrock and the City.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Without a supplemental, the City will be unable to meet its financial 
obligations under this agreement. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
$400,000 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Draft Agreement 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-60 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2017 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR AN AGREEMENT WITH 
MEDROCK, LLC, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware and Medrock, LLC seek to resolve all 

issues arising out of the Real Estate Purchase Contract between the City of 
Delaware and Medrock LLC (12/20/05), the Addendum to Section (16) of the 
contract dated 11/19/2010 and the Agreement regarding construction of 
South Houk Road between the City and Medrock LLC (10/05); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and Medrock have reached an agreement, subject to 

execution and funding by the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to this agreement the City will make a payment 

totaling $400,000 provided Medrock completes agreed upon improvements 
within eighteen months of approval of the design of those improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, a portion of the payment results from storm water 

infrastructure and a portion results from recreational levy projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2017 Budget does not include an appropriation sufficient 

to pay the agreed upon amount; and  
 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation will be necessary to make the 

payments as scheduled in the agreement.  
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Storm Water Fund $165,000 increasing the following account: 

 
Houk Rd. Storm Sewer  (203-0204-5553)  $165,000 
 
SECTION 2. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 

balance of the Recreation Income Tax Fund $235,000 increasing the following 
account: 

 
Houk Rd. Site Improvements (233-0233-5501)  $235,000 
 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 



deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
 SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public 
peace, safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to allow 
the City to make the agreed upon first payment within the established 
timeframe which will facilitate construction of the necessary improvements, 
and as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

Settlement  Agreement 

The parties, The City of Delaware (“City”) and Medrock, LLC (“Medrock”) enter into the following 
agreement to resolve all issues arising out of the Real Estate Purchase Contract (“Contract”) between 
the City of Delaware and Medrock LLC (12/20/05), the Addendum to Section (16) of the contract dated 
11/19/2010 (“Addendum”) and the Agreement regarding construction of South Houk Road 
(“Agreement”) between the City and Medrock LLC (10/05).  The City’s participation in this settlement 
does not indicate any flaw in the City’s design and construction of the existing storm water retention 
basin that was constructed for the purpose of meeting the storm water management requirements 
associated with the development of the Delaware Community Center YMCA/Veterans Park  
development. 

1. The City will pay Medrock  a total of $400,000 under this Settlement Agreement.  $165,000 of 
this total shall be paid upon execution of this Agreement, which will be presented to City Council 
for approval the first meeting occurring after the parties finalize the language.  The balance of 
the $400,000 will be paid upon completion of the construction of the storm sewer lines 
connecting both the existing Delaware Community Center YMCA/Veterans Park retention basin, 
and the proposed retention pond on Medrock’s property, to the existing storm sewer collection 
system, as referenced and shown in section ____ of the approved final engineering plans, 
attached as exhibit A, provided Medrock begins design work upon execution of the agreement 
and the construction is completed within 18 months of approval of the design.   Construction 
will be considered complete upon acceptance of the public improvements associated with the  
retention pond on Medrock’s property and related storm sewer lines and facilities,  __and 
verification that construction is consistent with final engineering plans with the production of 
“as built” engineering plans. 
 

2. In so agreeing to the connection of both the existing Delaware Community Center 
YMCA/Veterans Park retention basin and the proposed retention pond on Medrock’s property 
to the existing storm sewer collection system located along Medrock’s east property line, the 
City, the City Engineer and Medrock also agree to the following: 

a. It is anticipated that runoff from approximately +/- 9% of the remaining undeveloped 
Medrock property will be directed to the existing Delaware Community Center 
YMCA/Veterans Park pond for stormwater management. Runoff from the remaining 
approximately +/-91% of the undeveloped Medrock property will be directed to the 
proposed retention pond on Medrock’s property constructed at Medrock’s expense.  

b. Slight modifications to the Delaware Community Center YMCA/Veterans Park pond inlet 
and outlet structures will be required. 

c. The parties will work together to finalize details to produce a final stormwater plan and 
final engineering plans.  

 
3. The payment identified herein  and the completion of the agreed improvements by Medrock at 

its expense will resolve all remaining claims by Medrock arising out the Contract and Addendum 
and satisfy all City responsibilities remaining under the Contract, Addendum, and Agreement 



 

including but not limited to the requirement to supply dirt to Medrock, the location of the 
retention basin, provision of utilities, and access to the City’s existing retention basin for use by 
property being developed by Medrock, and/or any other claims, issues or controversies related 
to this matter. 
 

4. The parties recognize that it may be necessary from time to  time for Medrock to make 
adjustments to the approved  development plan as referenced in the Willowbrook Farm Tract 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) dated 8/3/1999, which currently has a maximum of 155 
dwelling units in Multi-Family  Area 4 and 140 dwelling units in Multi-Family Area 3.    Medrock 
has indicated that it wishes to decrease the number of units in one area and increase the 
number of units in a different area as well as adjust the unit types in one area.  This proposal will 
be pursued through the planning and development process in the normal course and under 
standard City approval procedures for a zoning amendment and development plan.  The City 
Administration and Medrock will work together towards approval of adjustments, provided the 
net units decrease in number. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

3935665.1 : 05636 00009  



















TO: Members of City Council

FROM: Dean Stelzer, Finance Director

DATE: August 24, 2017

Reports Included

Page                     Reports                   Purpose

2 Revenues by Source This summary compares year-to-date revenues for 2017 to 2016 by source.

3  General Fund Summary of General Fund budgeted revenues, expenditures and fund 

  balance.

4 Other  Operating Funds Summary of budgeted revenues, expenditures, & fund balances for 

   non-general fund operating funds.

5 Other Funds Other non-operating funds revenues, expenditures and fund balance.

6 Insurance Summary of the City's self-funded health insurance costs with 

  comparisons to last year.

7 Income Tax Monthly income tax collections for last three years.  Also includes 

  tax collection projections for remainder of the year.

8 Recreation Levy Summary Reflects 2017 and total Recreation Levy expenditures by Phase.

Highlights:

*  Income tax collections year-to-date are 5.36% above 2016 levels.  The budget projected an 6.5% increase. 

  If the collection rate holds through the remainder of the year the General Fund tax collections will be 

   $150,000 below the budget estimate.

* Engineering Fee reimbursements in the General Fund are up $615k over last year's amount.  An additional

   appropriation was approved to increase the expenditures associated with this reimbursement.

* Other development related revenues, impact fees, capacity fees are down 11% compared to 2016.

* Most expenditures are in line with mid-year budget estimates.

* Health Insurance net costs are up 26.7% over 2016.

YTD 2017 Budget Supplementals

17-17 $9,333 - General Fund - Refund fire insurance bond 

17-31  $14,000 - Project Trust Fund - Springfield Trail/Howald

17-36  $60,000 - General Bond Retirement Fund, $36,000 Water Fund, $10,000 Sewer Bond Fund - Bond issuance

    costs.

17-37  $175,000 - General Fund - Comrehensive Plan 

17-39  $5,000 - General Fund - AEP industrial park sign replacement

17-40 $50,000 - General Fund - Engineering Wages

17-50 $400,000 - General Fund - Engineering services

JULY FINANCE REPORT



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

REVENUES BY SOURCE

July 31, 2017

Revenues Revenues  

@ 7/31/17 @ 7/31/16 % Change

TAXES

Income Tax 16,619,521$         15,773,984$         5.36%
 Property Tax 912,355                979,176                -6.82%

Local Government Fund 352,279                357,119                -1.36%
Hotel/Motel Tax 43,598                  42,471                  2.65%
Gasoline Taxes 658,218                648,471                1.50%
License Plate Tax 398,966                397,769                0.30%

 
FEES  

Franchise Fee (cable tv) 184,045$              177,024$              3.97%
Parking Meter & Lot Fees 49,338                  52,123                  -5.34%
Fines/Forfeitures/Court Diversion Fees 83,315                  87,261                  -4.52%
Impact Fees 314,072                478,829                -34.41%
Airport - Fuel 298,110                197,791                50.72%
Cemetery 101,855                77,951                  30.67%
Golf Course 111,608                113,045                -1.27%

REIMBURSEMENTS

Engineering Fees 1,499,035$           884,820$              69.42%
Fire/EMS Reimbursement 682,041                67,389                  912.10%
Prosecutor Reimbursements 150,625                128,197                17.49%
Building Permits and Fees 447,682                496,621                -9.85%

UTILITY CHARGES   
Water  -  Meter Charges 3,061,579$           2,910,568$           5.19%
           -  Capacity Fees 878,858                926,092                -5.10%
Sewer  -  Meter Charges 3,703,854             3,599,169             2.91%
           -  Capacity Fees 847,061                874,686                -3.16%
Refuse 2,046,960             1,990,736             2.82%
Storm Sewer 492,616                495,084                -0.50%

MUNICIPAL COURT REVENUES 2,141,674$           2,022,288$           5.90%

2



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

GENERAL FUND REVENUES

July 31, 2017

July 58.33% of year Comparative

Revenues 2017 Revenues As Revenues % Change

7/31/2017 Budget % of Budget 7/31/2016 YTD

GENERAL FUND

Property Tax 706,401 1,522,000 46.41% 753,780 (6.29%)

City Income Tax 8,989,340 14,391,065 62.46% 8,536,061 5.31%

Other Taxes 1,050 0 0.00% 1,112 (5.58%)

Local Government Fund 352,279 617,500 57.05% 357,119 (1.36%)

Fines and Forfeitures 83,315 145,000 57.46% 87,261 (4.52%)

Engineering Fees 1,499,035 810,000 185.07% 884,820 69.42%

Prosecutor Contracts 150,625 260,000 57.93% 128,197 17.49%

Parking Meters 20,456 37,000 55.29% 21,341 (4.15%)

Other Fees and Contracts 14,911 0 0.00% 20,330 (26.66%)

Liquor Permits 39,488 45,000 87.75% 37,229 6.07%

Franchise Fees 184,045 355,000 51.84% 177,024 3.97%

Licenses & Permits 447,682 725,000 61.75% 496,621 (9.85%)

Investment Income 152,756 175,000 87.29% 63,650 139.99%

Miscellaneous 36,596 150,000 24.40% 71,905 (49.11%)

Reimbursements 80,938 168,000 48.18% 57,701 40.27%

Transfers 1,053,902 1,920,000 54.89% 1,032,488 2.07%

TOTAL 13,812,819 21,320,565 64.79% 12,726,639 8.53%

 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

Comparative

Expenses 2017 Expenses As Expenses % Change

7/31/2017 Budget % of Budget 7/31/2016 YTD

GENERAL FUND

City Council 70,764 151,797 46.62% 49,490 42.99%

City Manager 403,117 684,160 58.92% 400,050 0.77%

Human Resources 170,186 349,298 48.72% 142,065 19.79%

Economic Development 246,069 388,834 63.28% 202,311 21.63%

Legal Affairs/Prosecution 434,502 797,760 54.47% 436,140 (0.38%)

Finance 823,713 1,551,135 53.10% 785,357 4.88%

Income Tax Refunds 348,363 360,000 96.77% 311,073 11.99%

General Administration 3,319,593 5,684,387 58.40% 2,767,534 19.95%

Risk Management 2,927 332,900 0.88% 15,127 (80.65%)

Police 4,478,124 8,173,369 54.79% 4,197,033 6.70%

Planning 571,114 1,136,486 50.25% 549,608 3.91%

Engineering 877,402 1,485,329 59.07% 749,371 17.09%

City Buildings 247,020 478,763 51.60% 229,958 7.42%

TOTAL 11,992,894 21,574,218 55.59% 10,835,117 10.69%

General Fund Beginning Balance January 1, 2017 4,382,218           

 2017 General Fund Revenues 13,812,819       

 2017 General Fund Expenditures (11,992,894)      

 Advances to Other Funds -                      

 Outstanding Encumbrances 7/31/17 (380,668)            

General Fund Ending Fund Balance July 31,2017 5,821,475        

3



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

OTHER OPERATING FUNDs
July 31, 2017

 

REVENUES

Comparative

Revenues 2017 Revenues As Revenues % Change

7/31/2017 Budget % of Budget 7/31/2016 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,654,445 2,806,691 58.95% 1,578,037 4.84%

STORM SEWER 493,386 852,000 57.91% 495,930 (0.51%)

PARKS AND RECREATION 903,855 1,427,500 63.32% 748,836 20.70%

CEMETERY 145,605 212,500 68.52% 101,282 43.76%

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 404,303 711,218 56.85% 302,608 33.61%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 10,572,939 14,940,746 70.77% 6,142,936 72.12%

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,532,829 2,736,750 56.01% 1,451,113 5.63%

GOLF COURSE 111,608 173,700 64.25% 113,045 (1.27%)

WATER 3,420,203 5,650,132 60.53% 3,084,861 10.87%

SEWER 3,955,318 7,180,000 55.09% 3,797,609 4.15%

REFUSE 2,074,890 3,588,500 57.82% 2,018,445 2.80%

GARAGE ROTARY 322,720 645,440 50.00% 301,553 7.02%

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 526,425 1,052,850 50.00% 468,465 12.37%

TOTAL 26,118,526 41,978,027 62.22% 20,604,720 26.76%

 

 EXPENDITURES   

Comparative

Expenditures 2017 Expenses As Expenses % Change

7/31/2017 Budget % of Budget 7/31/2016 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,460,673 2,924,173 49.95% 1,295,314 12.77%

STORM SEWER 736,523 1,542,458 47.75% 354,006 108.05%

PARKS AND RECREATION 726,635 1,393,719 52.14% 716,387 1.43%

CEMETERY 152,504 411,281 37.08% 129,405 17.85%

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 357,100 801,551 44.55% 350,414 1.91%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 5,141,045 14,111,551 36.43% 5,673,548 (9.39%)

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,391,325 2,641,901 52.66% 1,347,361 3.26%

GOLF COURSE 98,373 200,014 49.18% 99,559 (1.19%)

WATER OPERATIONS 3,348,961 5,939,211 56.39% 3,113,663 7.56%

SEWER OPERATIONS 3,710,261 7,391,675 50.20% 3,003,665 23.52%

REFUSE 1,834,763 5,370,832 34.16% 1,979,563 (7.31%)

GARAGE ROTARY 328,257 643,633 51.00% 329,908 (0.50%)

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 499,668 1,053,120 47.45% 443,132 12.76%

TOTAL 19,786,088 44,425,119 44.54% 18,835,925 5.04%

 

FUND BALANCES

Fund Fund

Balance Revenues Expenditures Outstanding Balance

1/1/2017 7/31/2017 7/31/2017 Encumb. 7/31/2017

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 442,970 1,654,445 1,460,673 310,580 326,162

STORM SEWER 1,921,698 493,386 736,523 260,052 1,418,509

PARKS AND RECREATION 232,381 903,855 726,635 131,382 278,219

CEMETERY 299,378 145,605 152,504 14,284 278,195

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 232,295 404,303 357,100 71,709 207,789

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 5,637,179 10,572,939 5,141,045 3,705,886 7,363,187

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,881,840 1,532,829 1,391,325 6,540 2,016,804

GOLF COURSE 69,962 111,608 98,373 7,395 75,802

WATER OPERATIONS 1,421,338 3,420,203 3,348,961 182,228 1,310,352

SEWER OPERATIONS 2,661,859 3,955,318 3,710,261 136,948 2,769,968

REFUSE 2,185,719 2,074,890 1,834,763 390,610 2,035,236

GARAGE ROTARY 273,429 322,720 328,257 89,939 177,953

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 561,103 526,425 499,668 70,963 516,897

TOTAL 17,821,151 26,118,526 19,786,088 5,378,516 18,775,0734



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

OTHER FUND REVENUES/EXPENSES/FUND BALANCE

July 31, 2017

Beginning Ending

Fund Revenues Expenses Outstanding Fund

Balance 7/31/2017 7/31/2017 Encumbrances Balance

STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 106,060 61,547 0 5,500 162,107

LICENSE FEE 223,448 246,036 0 450,000 19,484

TREE FUND 211,030 85,601 50,000 0 246,631

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR 143,529 55,334 39,901 0 158,962

RECREATION FACILITIES TAX 3,530,990 1,363,868 828,228 61,064 4,005,566

AIRPORT TIF 57,415 12,501 0 0 69,916

GLENN RD BRIDGE TIF 1,463,310 462,399 53,249 194,062 1,678,398

SKY CLIMBER/V&P TIF 0 9,796 9,796 40,204 (40,204)

MILL RUN TIF 0 72,581 72,581 87,419 (87,419)

COURT IDIAM 18,784 13,765 22,632 0 9,917

DRUG ENFORCEMENT 54,013 3,310 169 0 57,154

COURT ALCOHOL TREATMENT 516,519 46,985 14,724 0 548,780

OMVI ENFORCEMENT/EDUCATION 4,036 1,282 0 0 5,318

POLICE JUDGEMENT 114,881 35,119 23,676 5,243 121,081

PARK DEVELOPMENT 205,177 26,808 0 0 231,985

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH 486,966 188,778 32,331 4,990 638,423

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS 865,397 185,631 27,292 28,529 995,207

PROBATION SERVICES 451,587 172,404 16,229 10,908 596,854

POLICE/FIRE DISABILITY 0 205,953 205,953 0 0

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 45,497 53,723 58,494 41,890 (1,164)

CDBG GRANT 2,530 0 693 70,000 (68,163)

ED REVOLVING LOAN 478,274 67,005 35,496 100,939 408,844

HOUSING GRANT PROGRAM INCOME 27,018 0 14,400 12,618 0

CHIP GRANT (62,267) 166,636 135,678 11,789 (43,098)

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT 72,367 1,752,565 1,491,919 0 333,013

PARK IMPROV BONDS FUND 107,796 756,697 376,451 0 488,042

SE HIGHLAND SEWER BOND FUND 83,023 582,414 295,386 0 370,051

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 1,408,850 1,334,912 1,031,974 1,001,950 709,838

FAA AIRPORT GRANT (374,800) 362,892 19,485 37,600 (68,993)

FAA AIRPORT AIP GRANT (406,370) 428,897 25,000 0 (2,473)

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 199,822 455,000 487,063 80,851 86,908

PARK IMPACT FEE 1,082,919 188,910 86,821 286,583 898,425

POLICE IMPACT FEE 334,055 26,313 18,728 697 340,943

FIRE IMPACT FEE 330,732 50,346 19,747 703 360,628

MUNICIPAL SERVICES IMPACT FEE 535,122 58,789 33,247 703 559,961

GLENN ROAD CONSTRUCTION FUNDS 3,486,736 10,969,177 11,384,158 17,792 3,053,963

PARKING LOTS 28,666 28,882 18,947 11,680 26,921

WATER CIP 9,903,611 4,191,970 4,957,528 39,189 9,098,864

SEWER CIP 6,835,942 4,138,564 4,779,346 138,532 6,056,628

SELF INSURANCE 2,216,317 2,558,648 3,063,729 15,179 1,696,057

WORKERS COMP RESERVE 1,973,888 454,685 159,119 3,809 2,265,645

FIRE DONATION 5,765 580 0 0 6,345

PARK DONATION 25,000 0 0 0 25,000

POLICE DONATION 7,809 40 0 0 7,849

MAYOR'S DONATION 1,958 1,100 2,243 35 780

PROJECT TRUST 560,120 4,195 9,607 15,893 538,815

UNCLAIMED FUNDS 68,119 1,902 0 0 70,021

DEVELOPMENT RESERVE FUND 807,886 0 0 0 807,886

RESERVE ACCOUNT FUND 1,012,323 0 0 0 1,012,323

BERKSHIRE JEDD FUND 32,427 122,435 81,103 118,897 (45,138)

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 36,063 157 879 0 35,341

STATE PATROL TRANSFER 252 39,921 40,173 0 0

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEES 474 3,984 3,928 0 530
PERFORMANCE BOND FUND 164,146 0 0 0 164,146

TOTAL 39,485,212 32,051,037 30,028,103 2,895,248 38,612,898

5



City of Delaware
      Employee Health Insurance Plan

 July 31, 2017
 

July YTD 2017 % of YTD % Change

Account 2017 2017 Budget Budget 2016 2016-17

Life Insurance 2,326$            16,230$          29,000$          56.0% 15,867$         2.3%

Insurance Opt-Out 2,395               17,465            30,500            57.3% 15,765           10.8%

Preventative Care 543                  18,012            45,000            40.0% 20,471           -12.0%

Vision Coverage -                   6,697               13,600            49.2% -                 0.0%

Administrative Fees

Excise Tax 1,724               1,724               40,000            0.0% 1,632             0.0%

 TPA Fees 7,023               55,127            86,000            64.1% 46,579           18.4%

 PPO Fees 3,724               25,620            46,000            55.7% 24,696           3.7%
 Broker Fees -                   -                   7,000               0.0% 3,528             -100.0%

  Total Admin 12,471            82,471            179,000          46.1% 76,435           7.9%
 

Stop Loss Insurance 52,833            372,381          620,000          60.1% 299,039         24.5%

Claims  

 Medical 169,820          1,985,823       3,400,000       58.4% 1,576,811      25.9%

 Dental 16,047            146,546          300,000          48.8% 179,758         -18.5%
 Prescription 44,392            418,104          715,000          58.5% 322,787         29.5%

  Total Claims 230,259          2,550,473       4,415,000       57.8% 2,079,356      22.7%

Total Costs 300,827          3,063,729       5,332,100       57.5% 2,506,933       22.2%

Employee Payment 35,482            461,696          820,000          56.3% 444,461         
Reimbursements 72,130            154,090          300,000          51.4% 130,006          

NET PLAN COSTS 193,215$        2,447,943$    4,212,100$    58.1% 1,932,466$    26.7%

6



MONTHLY INCOME TAX REVENUES 

2015-2017

 2015    2016    2017   

% OF % OF % OF

W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL BUDGET
               

JANUARY 1,386,435 325,735 145,382 1,857,552 1,433,007 317,649 37,649 1,788,305 1,794,272 205,680 204,662 2,204,614

FEBRUARY 1,374,902 315,054 84,287 1,774,243 2,161,101 396,158 52,085 2,609,344 1,304,987 327,145 95,437 1,727,569

MARCH 1,122,427 601,839 98,726 1,822,992 1,237,708 545,907 234,748 2,018,363 1,175,241 625,299 195,522 1,996,062

APRIL 1,299,084 2,094,760 670,933 4,064,777 1,481,257 2,185,373 575,354 4,241,984 1,786,686 2,352,889 1,092,340 5,231,915

MAY 1,283,212 133,840 38,214 1,455,266 1,390,669 153,006 33,392 1,577,067 1,388,195       185,269         50,869           1,624,333

JUNE 1,255,611 146,124 199,120 1,600,855 1,267,769 426,520 238,738 1,933,027 1,284,197       481,309         167,392         1,932,898

JULY 1,426,574 318,033 55,623 1,800,230 1,426,206 146,332 33,356 1,605,894 1,680,268 158,901 62,961 1,902,130

SUBTOTAL 9,148,245 3,935,385 1,292,285 14,375,915 62.91% 10,397,717 4,170,945 1,205,322 15,773,984 63.16% 10,413,846 4,336,492 1,869,183 16,619,521 62.44%

AUGUST 1,379,035 213,566 22,758 1,615,359 1,470,975 140,043 25,584 1,636,602

SEPTEMBER 1,219,497 194,176 224,009 1,637,682 1,167,550 523,048 257,476 1,948,074

OCTOBER 1,258,135 403,492 95,560 1,757,187 1,760,852 262,154 134,880 2,157,886

NOVEMBER 1,437,276 240,304 53,785 1,731,365 1,283,667 213,128 13,244 1,510,039

DECEMBER 1,294,296 274,186 166,753 1,735,235 1,296,162 420,091 232,478 1,948,731  

   

  TOTALS 15,736,484 5,261,109 1,855,150 22,852,743 102.12% 17,376,923 5,729,409 1,868,984 24,975,316 104.09% 10,413,846 4,336,492 1,869,183 16,619,521 62.44%

   

  BUDGETED 22,378,779 23,993,421 26,614,811

     Budgeted Increase % 6.56%

Total Jan-April  % of Annual  

Receipts Receipts  Collections $16,619,521 

2007 12,865,504 8,020,285 62.34%

2008 14,159,170 9,217,657 65.10%   HIGH = 62.34% $26,659,715 

2009 14,719,896 9,407,197 63.91%   LOW = 65.10% $25,529,115 

2010 15,185,348 9,670,760 63.68%

2011 17,765,717 11,161,927 62.83%   LAST 3 YR 

2012 19,658,101 12,534,905 63.76%   AVG   = 63.40% $26,211,775 

2013 20,557,766 13,020,081 63.33%

2014 21,537,420 13,816,113 64.15% *2017 BUDGETED RECEIPTS $26,614,811 

2015 22,852,743 14,375,915 62.91%

2016 24,975,316 15,773,984 63.16%

10 Year Avg. 63.52%

Projection based on ten year trend

JAN-JULY 2017 RECEIPTS =

7



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

RECREATION LEVY

July 31,  2017

2017 Total
2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 Remaining 2014 - 

Description Expended Expended Expended Expended Encumbered Budget 2017

Phase 1 - $20,000,000 

233-0233- 5230 Design 7,090 0 0 0 0 0 7,090

5513 Other Park Improvements 14,981 0 0 0 0 0 14,981

5521 National Guard City Alternatives 117,500 0 0 0 0 0 117,500

5533 Veterans Park Restroom/Shelter 0 100,000 150,000 0 0 0 250,000

  Total 139,571 100,000 150,000 0 0 0 389,571

Phase 2 - $3,800,000

233-0233- 5522 Park Asphalt Projects 306,291 59,111 27,841 0 0 0 393,243

5523 Park Seal Coating Projects 36,025 100,894 0 0 0 30,000 166,919

5524 Smith Park Trail 27,461 3,699 205,818 0 0 0 236,978

5525 Park Irrigation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5526 Park Aeration 20,109 0 0 0 0 286,000 306,109

5527 Parks General Construction Projects 113,737 6,250 12,645 0 0 157,581 290,213

5528 Dog Park 32,354 34,003 0 0 0 0 66,357

5529 Drainage & Excavation Projects 2,608 0 0 0 0 18,000 20,608

5530 Miscellaneous Park Improvements 42,715 0 0 0 0 25,000 67,715

5531 Veterans Park Parking Lot Addition 337,203 0 0 0 0 0 337,203

5532 Wayfinding and Signage 0 0 0 21,160 2,590 0 23,750

5534 Veterans Park Playtoy 0 152,551 94,449 0 58,474 -58,474 247,000

5535 Splashpad Construction 5,300 479,956 51,627 0 0 0 536,883

5536 Parkland Acquisition/Improvement 0 722,272 428,577 0 0 0 1,150,849

5537 Park Improvements Contingency 3,040 0 0 0 0 0 3,040

5538 Pickleball Courts 0 17,035 0 0 0 0 17,035

5710 In House Design 0 4,237 0 0 0 0 4,237

  Total 926,843 1,580,008 820,957 21,160 61,064 458,107 3,868,139

Phase 1 Totals 139,571 100,000 150,000 0 0 0 389,571

  Phase 1 Reimbursements 72,000 72,000

Phase 1 Net Cost 67,571 100,000 150,000 0 0 0 317,571

Phase 1 Net Cost 2009-2013  19,609,505

    TOTAL PHASE 1 COSTS 19,927,076

Phase 2 Totals 926,843 1,580,008 820,957 21,160 61,064 458,107 3,868,139

  Phase 2 Reimbursements 212,722 212,722

    TOTAL PHASE 2 COSTS 926,843 1,367,286 820,957 21,160 61,064 458,107 3,655,417

TOTAL ALL PHASES 23,582,493

Account #

8



City Manager Report 20170828 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: August 24, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 None Reported 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  

August 10 
* Delaware Northern NCA 
August 14 
* Rotary 
* City Council Meeting 
August 16 
* Finance Committee Meeting 
August 23 
* Transportation Academy 
* Hayes High School Ribbon Cutting 
 

4. Required Reading 
 Delaware Fire Department July 2017 Monthly Report 
 
 







Delaware Fire Department 

July 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 

 
 
Major Incidents 

 July 5, S. Sandusky St, Structure Fire due to fireworks 

 July 21, Severe Storms 

 July 29, SR 36/37 & Davidson, Fatal MVC 

 
Other Activities 

 July 4th Activities 

 YMCA Youth Fire Academy 

 Station Tours 

 IronMan 

 Smoke Detector/Battery Installs 

 Block Parties 

 
2010 Fire Levy Status 

 Equipment - Continuing 

 Committee has reviewed the pre-construction drawings on the new Quint Fire Truck. 

Members of the committee attended the Pre-Construction meeting April 10-13. Truck was 

ordered in September and delivery is expected in October 2017. 

 Three new Paramedic trucks were placed in-service and are operating at all of our Fire 

Stations. 

 Staff cars have been replaced in 2012-2016. This has included the implementation of 

retired police vehicles for station and inspector cars. 

 The new engine was delivered and placed in-service in April 2013. 

 The new paramedic truck was delivered and was placed in-service in January 2013. 

 The new ladder truck was delivered and was placed in-service in April 2012. 

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2014 2015 2016 2017 July Year-to-Date %  Year to Date %  of Budget (+ / -)
Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget Completed Projected for Year

Total number of incidents 5,173 5,380 5,891 5,988 526 3,346 55.88% 58.00% -2.12%

     Fire 101 126 107 98 4 66 67.35% 58.00% 9.35%

     Rupture/Explosion 3 1 5 3 0 5 166.67% 58.00% 108.67%

     EMS 4,047 4,254 4,658 4,785 379 2,539 53.06% 58.00% -4.94%

     Hazardous Conditions 124 135 150 151 20 96 63.58% 58.00% 5.58%

     Service Calls 141 155 128 129 35 115 89.15% 58.00% 31.15%

     Good Intent 162 155 213 192 26 153 79.69% 58.00% 21.69%

     False Calls 589 541 621 619 60 361 58.32% 58.00% 0.32%

     Severe Weather 0 1 3 4 1 3 75.00% 58.00% 17.00%

     Other 6 12 6 7 1 8 114.29% 58.00% 56.29%

Number of medical transports 2,586 2,742 2,836 2,900 225 1,540 53.10% 58.00% -4.90%

Narcan Administration 55 43 64 64 9 36 56.25% 58.00% -1.75%

Percent of priority calls w/ response within 6 min 68% 74% 71% 70% 67% 71% 70.00% 58.00% 1.00%

Percent working structure fires ERF of 15 FF 
within 12 minutes 78% 85% 100% 70% N/A 100% 142.86% 58.00% 70.00%

     # Structure Fires 9 13 18 10 0 10 100.00% 58.00% 42.00%

     # Structure with personnel and Times 7 11 18 7 0 10 142.86% 58.00% 84.86%

Number of commercial inspections conducted 1,473 1,365 1,345 1,450 107 1,097 75.66% 58.00% 17.66%

Number of plans reviewed within five days 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100.00% 58.00% 100.00%

Number of fires greater than $10,000 8 12 9 10 0 4 40.00% 58.00% -18.00%

Number of fires of suspicious nature 5 6 3 4 0 1 25.00% 58.00% -33.00%

Hours of Training 13,335 10,977 12,454 10,000 1,022 8,013 80.13% 58.00% 22.13%



Delaware Fire Department 

July 2017 Monthly Report 

 
 Personnel - Continuing 

 Civil Service List was updated on July 12. Candidates were interviewed on July 31-August 

4. 

 FF Taylor Von Lohr completed his paramedic class and certification at Grant Medical 

center. Taylor graduated with honors and graduated at the top of his class on April 3, 2017. 

 40 potential new hire candidate names were pulled on October 31, to advance to the 

application and agility process. Additional Agility Testing took place in December 2016. 

Background checks have been completed for the candidates and interviews are scheduled 

with the Fire Chief for the week of April 3. 

 Firefighters Kehlmier and Whitley began full-time work in January. These positions were 

filled due to resignations. FF Kehlmier and Whitley were previously Part-time Firefighters 

with our Department. 

 The total amount of new personnel hired since the new levy is 36. Some of these positions 

have filled open positions. 

 New Fire Station 304 - Continuing 

 Request for Qualifications for the design build construction was posted and were received 

on January 30.  

 October 24, took action to annex the St 304 property. Lot surveying took place for St 304. 

 Property was purchased in 2011 at 821 Cheshire Rd. The property was leased out and the 

lease moved out on November 30, 2013. In 2014, we plan to begin the analysis and plans 

for an anticipated groundbreaking in 2016. 

 The opening of this Station is dependent on the increased staffing. This will be 

accomplished through the use of Part-Time personnel to supplement the staffing. The Part-

Time personnel will be backfilling the open positions caused by personnel scheduled 

leaves. 

 Fire Station 303 - Completed 

 On September 27, 2013 we began operation 24/7. The Fire Station was dedicated on 

October 19, 2013. 

 

 

 

  



Delaware Fire Department 

July 2017 Monthly Report 

 
 

Council for Older Adults – Monthly Report on the Firehouse Coordinator 
 

 

 

  



Delaware Fire Department 

July 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 


	01 20170828 agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20170814 council minutes
	03 20170620 parb minutes
	04 20170411 finance minutes
	05 20170220 parking and safety minutes
	06 fact sheet res 17-51 , asbhurn drive parking restrictions
	07 res 17-51, asburn drive parking restrictions
	08 Ashburn Dr @ Ferguson Ave No Parking Exhibit A
	09 Fact Sheet Res 17-52 OPWC Rd 32 application
	10 Res 17-52 OPWC Rd 32 Application
	11 2018 OPWC Exhibit
	12 res 17-43 opwc winter st bridge rehab
	13 Fact Sheet Res 17-53 County Coop Agmt OPWC 32
	14 Res 17-53 OPWC Rd 32 County Coop Agmt
	15 res 17-44 opwc winter street bridge rehab round 32
	16 fact sheet res 17-54, 2018 2022 cip
	17 res 17-54, 2018 2022 cip
	18 2018-2022 Final CIP
	19 Fact Sheet Res 17-59 Supplemental Appropriation TXWY A
	20 ordinance 17-59 appropriation taxiway grant faa (3)
	21 fact sheet ord 17-60 , medrock supplemental appropriation
	22 ord 17-60, Medrock supplemental appropriation
	23 FINAL Medrock proposed agreement
	24 draft ord tethering laws
	26 city managers report 20170828
	27 aug calender
	28  July Fire Report

